This document is made available electronically by the Minnesota Legislative Reference Library as part of an ongoing digital archiving project. http://www.leg.state.mn.us/lrl/lrl.asp





Minnesota Department of Labor and Industry Compliance Services

Compliance Services
Minnesota Department of Labor and Industry
443 Lafayette Road N.
St. Paul, MN 55155

January 2005

The total estimated cost of publishing this report is \$2,000.

Information in this report can be obtained in alternative formats by calling the department at 1-800-342-5354 or (651) 297-4198/TTY.

Please visit our Web site at: www.doli.state.mn.us



Table of Contents

Introduction	1
Assessment and Collection Procedures	2
General Appendix Table Information	3
Penalty Descriptions	
Late Filing of the First Report of Injury	3
Late First Payment of Benefits	4
Late Denial of Claims	4
Prohibited Practices	5
Rehabilitation Provider Discipline	6
Managed Care Organization Discipline	6
Health Care Provider Discipline	7
Failure to Insure	7
Late Filing of Special Fund and Loggers' Assessments	8
Other Penalties	Q

Appendix Table

Introduction

As part of its 1992 workers' compensation reform legislation, the Minnesota Legislature directed the commissioner of the Department of Labor and Industry to submit an annual report about the assessment and collection of fines and penalties under workers' compensation law (Minnesota Statutes §176.222).

Fines and penalties are found throughout the workers' compensation statutes. Employers may be penalized for failing to obtain workers' compensation insurance, failing to post a required poster, falsifying insurance information and for late filing of injury reports with their insurance companies. Insurance companies and self-insured employers may be penalized for a variety of reasons, including failure to commence benefit payments to an injured worker or to deny liability for a claimed injury in a timely manner, failure to pay benefits when ordered to do so by the commissioner or a compensation judge, failure to file required reports with the department and denying benefits without notice or reason, among others. Insurance companies, self-insured employers and third-party administrators may be penalized for violations of the prohibited practices section of the statute. These violations include failing to respond within 30 days to the department's written request for information about a claim or failing to pay pursuant to an order within 45 days. Vocational rehabilitation providers are subject to sanctions, including penalties, for failure to follow the rehabilitation rules such as the professional conduct standards. Certified managed care plans and health care providers are subject to sanctions, including penalties, for failure to provide services as required by statute, rule or in accordance with the managed care plan as certified. Any party to a claim may be penalized for failing to release requested existing medical data in a timely fashion.

The workers' compensation statutes allow the department to use its discretion in assessing penalties for violations of workers' compensation law. This gives the department the flexibility to monitor all cases for violations that inflict the greatest damage to injured workers, employers and the system as a whole. Other violations may result in penalties when they are reported to the department by a party to a claim or by the general public.

Under the workers' compensation law, penalties are paid to one of three recipients depending on the nature of the violation. Most penalties are paid to the Assigned Risk Safety Account that was created in 1992 by the Minnesota Legislature. This account finances some safety programs in the department, including matching grants or loans awarded to employers to improve the safety of their workplaces. A few penalties are paid to the Special Compensation Fund to assist in financing the entire workers' compensation system. Finally, some penalties are paid directly to injured workers when their monetary benefit payments have been unreasonably delayed by the insurer.

The department's Financial Services unit collects all workers' compensation penalties that are payable to the Assigned Risk Safety Account and the Special Compensation Fund. The Compliance Services unit monitors the payment of penalties to injured workers.

This report presents fine and penalty information in its appendix for fiscal-years 2001 through 2004. Each fiscal-year begins July 1, ends the following June 30, and is named for the year in

which the 12-month period ends. For example, the fiscal-year beginning July 1, 2003, and ending June 30, 2004, is "FY 2004."

This report primarily focuses on penalties issued and collections made during FY 2004. Although warnings are also technically defined as penalties, only penalty assessments that involve monetary fines are included in the appendix.

Assessment and Collection Procedures

When a potential penalty situation is identified by the department's internal monitoring system or by an external customer, department staff members carefully review the facts and determine whether a penalty should be assessed. If so, a penalty notice is sent to the violator describing the infraction and the dollar amount of the penalty. A stipulated consent agreement containing the same information is used to assess most penalties against managed care organizations, rehabilitation providers and medical providers. All penalty information is entered into the department's database.

When the penalty is assessed for an employer's failure to obtain workers' compensation insurance, the employer may challenge the penalty by filing a written objection with the department within 10 days. Objections to all other penalty notices must be filed within 30 days of the assessment.

If a timely objection to a penalty notice is received by the department, the penalty recipient and the department may attempt to settle the penalty. If these attempts are unsuccessful, a settlement conference and/or hearing is conducted at the Office of Administrative Hearings (OAH) to determine whether the penalty was appropriate.

If a stipulated consent agreement cannot resolve a penalty issue involving a managed care organization, rehabilitation provider or medical provider, the commissioner may initiate a contested case hearing at OAH. An administrative law judge then issues a recommendation regarding the appropriateness of a penalty, which is considered by the Rehabilitation Review Panel (Minnesota Statutes §176.102) or the Medical Services Review Board (Minnesota Statutes §176.103). The panel or the board then makes the final decision to assess the penalty.

Appeals from OAH, the Rehabilitation Review Panel and the Medical Services Review Board are heard by the Minnesota Workers' Compensation Court of Appeals and may be appealed to the Minnesota Supreme Court.

A penalty becomes final when it is assessed and no objection or appeal is filed. If an objection or appeal has been filed by its deadline, the penalty becomes final when it is settled or when an order is issued by a judge and it is not appealed.

When a penalty is final, it must be paid within 30 days. The department initiates collection procedures when parties have not paid their penalties by this deadline. If necessary, the department uses the Minnesota Department of Revenue Collections Division to obtain payment of the penalty. The department may take a penalty case to District Court as long as the action is filed within two years of the date the penalty becomes final.

General Appendix Table Information

The penalties contained within Minnesota Statutes §176 are listed on the left of the appendix table at the end of this report. The table is divided into columns describing the total number and dollar amount of penalties assessed and collected during each fiscal year for each penalty type.

Assessments in a fiscal year do not correspond to collections during the same fiscal year for various reasons:

- If a penalty is challenged, any subsequent settlement or withdrawal of the penalty will reduce the number and/or amount of penalties to be collected.
- Litigation and/or collection procedures can delay the collection of a penalty for one or more years after the assessment.
- The department does not collect penalty payments made to injured employees. Although these penalty numbers and dollar amounts are included in the "Assessed" column, they are not included in the "Collected" column.

Penalty Descriptions

Late Filing of the First Report of Injury (Minnesota Statutes §176.231)

Description: The First Report of Injury is a document completed by the employer when he or she receives notice that a workplace injury or illness has occurred. The employer has 10 days to file this report with its workers' compensation insurance company on all claimed work-related injuries resulting in disability that extends beyond three calendar-days (lost-time claims). The insurance company has an additional four days beyond this 10-day period, or a total of 14 days, to file the First Report of Injury with the department. Self-insured employers have 14 days to file the First Report of Injury with the department (the 10-day period does not apply).

The department considers the prompt filing of first reports by employers and insurers to be essential in keeping the costs of the workers' compensation system as low as possible. An employer's delay in filing the first report with the insurance company reduces the amount of time (the same 14 days) the insurer has to determine liability and meet its own filing deadline. A delay in the insurance company's or self-insured employer's filing of the First Report of Injury with the department hinders the department's ability to monitor the claim and respond to questions about its status. Any delay in the provision of medical and monetary benefits caused by the late filing of a First Report of Injury can create mistrust between the injured worker and the employer and insurer, and can adversely affect the future of the claim.

All new lost-time claims are monitored to determine whether the *First Report of Injury* has been filed in a timely manner. Penalties are assessed for late filings with the insurance company or with the department. If an objection is filed on a penalty, the department may settle the penalty or refer the matter to OAH for a settlement conference or a hearing before a compensation judge.

Penalty Payment: These penalties are payable to the Assigned Risk Safety Account.

Appendix Table: The number of penalties for late filing of the *First Report of Injury* in FY 2004 declined slightly from the previous fiscal year.

Late First Payment of Benefits (Minnesota Statutes §176.221 and 176.225)

Description: Every insurance company or self-insured employer that accepts liability for a lost-time claim and the resulting disability must begin payment of monetary benefits to the injured worker within 14 days of the date the employer receives notice of the loss of time or wages. Timely issuance of the first payment or explanation of the reason for nonpayment is critical to the smooth handling of a claim. A delay may motivate the injured worker to retain the services of an attorney and to view the insurance company or self-insured employer as an adversary, increasing the costs of the claim.

Each new lost-time claim is monitored to determine whether the first payment has been timely. Penalties are assessed for late first payments of claims. The insurance company or self-insured employer may object to any penalty assessed for this violation. Settlement and litigation procedures are identical to those for late filing of the *First Report of Injury*.

Penalty Payment: The penalty under Minnesota Statutes §176.221 is payable to the Assigned Risk Safety Account. The penalty under Minnesota Statutes §176.225 is payable to the injured worker.

Appendix Table: The number of penalties for late first payment of benefits increased approximately 8 percent in FY 2004 from the previous fiscal year.

Late Denial of Claims (Minnesota Statutes §176.221)

Description: If an insurance company or self-insured employer denies primary liability for a lost-time claim or accepts liability for the injury but denies liability for the disability, it must notify both the injured worker and the department of its denial within 14 days after the employer receives notice of the loss of time or wages. It is important that the insurer give this information to injured workers quickly. A timely denial gives the injured worker the opportunity to dispute the insurer's liability decision before his or her financial situation becomes severely damaged. Delays may affect the future relationship between the injured worker and the insurer, even if the claim is later accepted.

Each new lost-time claim is monitored to determine whether the denial has been filed on time. Penalties are assessed for late denials of claims. The insurance company or self-insured employer may object to any penalty assessed for this violation. Settlement and litigation procedures are consistent with those already described in this report.

Penalty Payment: These penalties are payable to the Assigned Risk Safety Account.

Appendix Table: The number of penalties for late denials of claims decreased approximately 17 percent in FY 2004 from the previous fiscal year.

Prohibited Practices (Minnesota Statutes §176.194)

Description: Minnesota Statutes §176.194 describes nine types of conduct by insurance companies, self-insured employers and third-party administrators that are prohibited under workers' compensation law. These include:

- failing to reply within 30 days to written requests from the claimant for information about a claim;
- failing to either deny the claim or commence benefits within 45 days after a written request to do so;
- failing to pay or deny medical bills within 45 days of receipt of all information requested of the medical provider;
- failing to investigate a claim before denying liability;
- failing to pay weekly benefits in a timely manner;
- failing to respond within 30 days to the department's written request for information about a claim;
- failing to pay pursuant to an order within 45 days;
- advising the injured worker not to obtain an attorney; and
- altering information on a document to be filed with the department without the notice and consent of any person who previously signed the document and would be adversely affected by the alteration.

The department monitors the written requests it makes to insurance companies, self-insured employers and third-party administrators, and assesses penalties when a party fails to respond. Penalties are also assessed as a result of complaints made by parties to a claim alleging violations of the prohibited practice statute by insurance companies, self-insured employers and third-party administrators. Depending on the type of prohibited conduct, monetary penalties may either be assessed immediately or after five violations of that type of conduct have occurred within the previous 12 months. As with the preceding penalties, a prohibitive practices penalty may be settled or litigated before an administrative law judge after an objection is received.

Penalty Payment: Monetary penalties are payable to the Assigned Risk Safety Account.

Appendix Table: In FY 2004 these penalties increased slightly from the previous fiscal year.

Rehabilitation Provider Discipline (Minnesota Statutes §176.102)

Description: Minnesota Statutes §176.102 and Minnesota Rules Part 5220 provide minimum standards of performance and professional conduct for rehabilitation providers. These standards require each provider to follow the process specified in the statute and rules for the provision of vocational rehabilitation consultation and services. Each provider must also follow certain standards of conduct, objectivity and professional competence, and must not confuse the role of a provider with that of an insurer.

The department certifies rehabilitation providers and also monitors their performance. Members of the general public may file complaints with the department when they believe a rehabilitation provider has violated any of the performance or professional conduct standards. The department investigates the complaints and may initiate a variety of disciplinary actions against the provider, including monetary penalties. Subsequent negotiations with the provider may result in a settlement of the penalty. If a settlement does not occur, the department may bring the issue before an administrative law judge for a hearing. However, unlike other penalty processes, the judge's findings of fact and conclusions of law are submitted to the Rehabilitation Review Panel (Minnesota Statutes §176.102), which imposes the penalty.

The panel's decision may be appealed to the Workers' Compensation Court of Appeals.

Penalty Payment: Monetary penalties are payable to the Special Compensation Fund.

Appendix Table: Department monitoring of rehabilitation providers has resulted in penalties during each of the four fiscal-years listed in the appendix.

Managed Care Organization Discipline (Minnesota Statutes §176.1351)

Description: Under Minnesota Statutes §176.1351, the department certifies managed care plans. Minnesota Rules Parts 5218.0800 and 5218.0900 require the department to monitor the performance of these plans and investigate complaints.

The department may refuse to certify, suspend or revoke certification of a managed care plan for failure to provide required medical services and for failure to provide those services in accordance with the terms of the certified plan. In lieu of suspension or revocation of certification, administrative penalties may be assessed. The commissioner may enter into a stipulated consent agreement with the managed care plan for corrective or preventive action or the amount of the penalty to be paid. If there is no stipulated agreement and the managed care plan objects to the penalty assessment, it may be brought before a compensation judge for a hearing.

Penalty Payment: Monetary penalties are payable to the Special Compensation Fund.

Appendix Table: There was one penalty assessed against Certified Managed Care Organizations in FY 2004.

Health Care Provider Discipline (Minnesota Statutes §176.103)

Description: Under Minnesota Statutes §176.103, sanctions may be imposed against health care providers by the Medical Services Review Board for violating a workers' compensation statute or rule. Any member of the general public may initiate a complaint against a health care provider if he or she believes a violation has occurred. If the department's investigation determines that a complaint is substantiated, the commissioner may enter into a stipulated consent agreement with the health care provider for corrective or preventive action, including a monetary penalty. If a settlement does not occur, the department brings the issue before an administrative law judge for a hearing. The judge's findings of fact and conclusions of law are submitted to the board, which imposes the penalty.

The board's decision may be appealed to the Workers' Compensation Court of Appeals.

Penalty Payment: Monetary penalties are payable to the Assigned Risk Safety Account.

Appendix Table: There were two penalties assessed against health care providers under this statute in FY 2004.

Failure to Insure (Minnesota Statutes §176.181)

Description: Under the provisions of Minnesota Statutes §176.181, all employers that are covered by Minnesota workers' compensation laws must obtain insurance through an insurance company or become self-insured. When an employer is suspected of operating without workers' compensation insurance, the department conducts an investigation and assesses a penalty when the employer is found to be in violation of this law. The department uses a penalty matrix to determine the severity of each violation and the amount of the penalty. As with other penalties, a dispute may result in a settlement of the penalty or a hearing before an administrative law judge. Employers that fail to respond to a department's penalty assessment may be taken to District Court for judgment and collection.

Penalty Payment: These penalties are payable to the Assigned Risk Safety Account.

Appendix Table: The department monitors and investigates employers suspected of being uninsured. Cases are generated from tips provided by the public, information from *First Reports of Injury* and a comparison of employers' unemployment insurance records against their workers' compensation insurance records. The number of penalties assessed decreased by 47 percent in FY 2004 from the previous fiscal-year. This was primarily due to staff reductions from budget pressures, coupled with an increase in the number of uninsured claims that required the department to redirect the remaining investigation resources to address the investigation of these claims.

Late Filing of Special Fund and Loggers' Assessments (Minnesota Statutes §176.129 and 176.130)

Description: The Special Compensation Fund, which is administered by the department, is funded primarily by semi-annual assessments against insurance companies and self-insured employers based on the amount of indemnity benefits paid. Minnesota Statutes §176.129 and Minnesota Rules Part 5220.2840 dictate filing and payment timelines and provide for the issuance of penalties when the timelines are not met.

A second workers' compensation statute, Minnesota Statutes §176.130, imposes an annual assessment on Minnesota wood mills. This assessment is used to pay rebates to qualified employers in the logging industry and to fund a logger safety education program. Penalties provided under Minnesota Statutes §176.130 may be imposed against wood mills for failure to pay their assessments by the statutory deadline.

These two penalties are combined in the appendix table under "Late Filing of Special Fund Assessment." Settlement and litigation procedures are consistent with those used for other department penalties.

Penalty Payment: Both of these penalties are payable to the Assigned Risk Safety Account.

Appendix Table: The number of penalties in FY 2004 for late filing of special fund assessments and logger assessments were about the same as the previous fiscal-year.

Other Penalties (Minnesota Statutes §176.221, 176.225, 176.138, 176.231, 176.238, and 176.84)

Description: Situations resulting in these penalties most often include late payment of medical, rehabilitation or monetary benefits, failure to file required reports, frivolous or nonspecific denials of claims and the improper payment or discontinuance of benefits. Most penalties are assessed against insurers, but penalties for failure to file required reports are also assessed against employers and health care providers. These penalties occur either as a result of complaints from members of the general public or as a result of departmental monitoring of files. As with other penalties, these may be settled or litigated after the penalty is assessed.

Penalty Payment: These penalties are payable to the Assigned Risk Safety Account, the Special Compensation Fund and/or the injured worker.

Appendix Table: The number of these types of penalties increased approximately 12 percent in FY 2004, primarily due to decreased compliance by the industry in responding to requests by the department to file required forms.

Appendix table Workers' Compensation Division penalty statistics

	FY 2001					FY 2002				FY 2003				FY 2004			
	As	Assessed Collected		Assessed		Collected		Assessed			Collected		Assessed		Collected		
Penalty type	Total	Dollar	Total	Dollar	Total	Dollar	Total	Dollar	Total	Dollar	Total	Dollar	Total	Dollar	Total	Dollar	
, , ,	#	amount	#	amount	#	amount	#	amount	#	amount	#	amount	#	amount	#	amount	
Late Filing of 1st Report (M.S. 176.231)	733	\$297,750	647	\$261,676	601	\$240,375	524	\$208,900	560	\$219,125	471	\$183,963	532	\$218,250	446	\$182,588	
Late 1st Payment (M.S. 176.221)	1,763	\$883,237	1,695	\$598,017	1,480	\$759,866	1,442	\$507,858	1,196	\$660,908	1,126	\$421,059	1,290	\$655,197	1,251	\$425,228	
Late Denial (M.S. 176.221)	651	\$447,250	520	\$314,518	577	\$389,500	534	\$320,925	476	\$324,000	405	\$240,175	392	\$236,250	325	\$177,575	
Prohibited Practices (M.S. 176.194)	153	\$648,000	105	\$392,400	85	\$327,000	96	\$229,400	67	\$279,000	58	\$167,850	74	\$294,000	59	\$166,075	
Rehabilitation Provider Discipline (M.S. 176.102)	4	\$1,800	9	\$5,075	17	\$10,450	19	\$10,250	3	\$1,350	3	\$1,350	1	\$450	1	\$450	
Managed Care Organization Discipline (M.S. 176.1351)	0	\$0	0	\$0	1	\$2,500	1	\$2,500	0	\$0	0	\$0	1	\$2,000	1	\$2,000	
Health Care Provider Discipline (M.S. 176.103)	0	\$0	0	\$0	3	\$3,000	3	\$3,000	0	\$0	0	\$0	2	\$900	2	\$900	
Failure To Insure (M.S. 176.181)	416	\$2,585,083	355	\$413,132	427	\$2,217,275	395	\$510,370	387	\$2,161,847	368	\$476,103	205	\$2,329,931	291	\$561,050	
Late Filing of Special Fund Assessment (M.S. 176.129 & 176.130)	131	\$275,843	108	\$216,607	106	\$173,528	81	\$108,313	134	\$225,391	93	\$126,373	130	\$230,636	149	\$231,652	
* Other Penalties (M.S. 176.221, 176.225, 176.138, 176.231, 176.238, & 176.84)	202	\$138,330	173	\$46,519	119	\$91,156	92	\$33,441	145	\$139,402	126	\$46,054	163	\$94,920	138	\$42,300	
TOTALS	4,053	\$5,277,293	3,612	\$2,247,944	3,416	\$4,214,650	3,187	\$1,934,957	2,968	\$4,011,022	2,650	\$1,662,927	2,790	\$4,062,534	2,663	\$1,789,818	

^{*}These penalties could include: nonspecificity of notices, improper payment of permanent partial disability, late payment of orders, improper discontinuance, frivolous denial, late payment of medical expenses, failure to release medical data, late payment of ongoing benefits, failure to file other required reports and late payment of rehabilitation expenses.

Notes: Penalties pursuant to M.S. 176.225, which are payable to the employee, have been included in the assessed amounts only. All dollar amounts have been rounded to the nearest whole dollar.